

Section I
Notices of Development of Proposed Rules
and Negotiated Rulemaking

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Historical Resources

RULE NO.: 1A-37.001
RULE TITLE: Use or Rental of Mission San Luis
Facilities

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule
amendment is to update fee and rental guidelines for the use
and rental of Mission San Luis facilities.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Fee and rental
guidelines for the use and rental of Mission San Luis facilities.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 267.17(2)(b) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 267.17 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED
UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE
DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE
DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: September 21, 2010, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: Mission San Luis, 2100 West Tennessee Street,
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities
Act, any person requiring special accommodations to
participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the
agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by
contacting: Ryan Wheeler, Chief, Bureau of Archaeological
Research, at (850)245-6301; email: rjwheeler@dos.state.fl.us.
If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the
agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771
(TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE
PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF
THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Ryan
Wheeler, Chief, Bureau of Archaeological Research, at
(850)245-6301; email: rjwheeler@dos.state.fl.us

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE
DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM
THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER
SERVICES

Division of Food Safety

RULE NO.: 5K-5.014
RULE TITLE: Grading Services for Poultry

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule amendment changes the
fee schedule for poultry grading services provided by the
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Florida
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services provides
voluntary grading services to food establishments that process
poultry in accordance with the cooperative agreement
established between the US Department of Agriculture
(USDA) and this agency as authorized under Section 583.052,
Florida Statutes. Under the statement of work provided in this
cooperative agreement, the Department shall charge fees to the
poultry processor in order to collect all costs incurred by this
agency associated with this service and administration of this
program. Historically, rule language specific to the fee
schedule was promulgated every three to five years to provide
a multi-year revenue base to ensure coverage of current and
projected program costs. The agency is now seeking a
modification to this fee schedule to collect revenues needed to
support all program costs for the current fiscal year (FY
2010/2011) only. Subsequently, the agency will assess the
revenues needed each fiscal year and proceed with annual rule
adoption of fee increases to support all program costs.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 570.07(23), 583.04 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 583.051, 583.052 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED
UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE
DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN
THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE
WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE
PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF
THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Lee M. Cornman, Assistant
Director, Division of Food Safety, 3125 Conner Boulevard,
Mail Stop C-18, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1650; telephone:
(850)245-5595

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE
DEVELOPMENT IS:

5K-5.014 Grading Services for Poultry.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Under that agreement and to offset the cost of
providing the services to the producer who orders them, the
department establishes the following schedule:

(a) Grader's time per hour for:

Table with 2 columns: Description and Price. Rows include Regular Hours, Overtime Hours, Holiday Hours, Regular Shift Differential, and Overtime Shift Differential with prices like \$35.00, \$39.50, \$52.50, \$37.00, and \$41.00.

6. In addition to the charge for the grader's time per hour,
an additional charge of \$2.00 per hour shall be charged to
regular and overtime hours worked at a resident location on a
shift beginning after 3:00 p.m.

(b) Travel time and costs:

1. Time for travel to and from the grader’s headquarters for grading services at a non-resident or part-time resident location, or on non-scheduled days at a resident location shall be charged at the same rate as grading services provided.

2. Mileage and per diem to and from the grader’s headquarters for grading services at a non-resident or part-time resident location, or on non-scheduled days at a resident location shall be reimbursed at the prevailing rates provided in Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

(4) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), 583.04 FS. Law Implemented 583.051, 583.052 FS. History–New 8-13-92, Formerly 5E-7.014, Amended 9-30-96, 9-5-01, 7-1-06, 7-1-10,_____.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Food Safety

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

5K-6.010 Grading Services for Shell Eggs

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule amendment changes the fee schedule for shell egg grading services provided by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services provides voluntary grading services to food establishments that process shell egg grading services in accordance with the cooperative agreement established between the US Department of Agriculture (USDA) and this agency as authorized under Section 583.052, Florida Statutes. Under the statement of work provided in this cooperative agreement, the Department shall charge fees to the shell egg processor in order to collect all costs incurred by this agency associated with this service and administration of this program. Historically, rule language specific to the fee schedule was promulgated every three to five years to provide a multi-year revenue base to ensure coverage of current and projected program costs. The agency is now seeking a modification to this fee schedule to collect revenues needed to support all program costs for the current fiscal year (FY 2010/2011) only. Subsequently, the agency will assess the revenues needed each fiscal year and proceed with annual rule adoption of fee increases to support all program costs.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 570.07(23), 583.04 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 583.051, 583.052 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Lee M. Cornman, Assistant

Director, Division of Food Safety, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Mail Stop C-18, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1650; telephone: (850)245-5595

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

5K-6.010 Grading Services for Shell Eggs.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Under that agreement and to offset the cost of providing services to the producer who orders them, the department establishes the following schedule:

(a) Grader’s time per hour for:

1. Regular Hours	\$35.00	39.50
2. Overtime Hours	\$39.00	43.50
3. Holiday Hours	\$52.50	59.25
4. Regular Shift Differential	\$37.00	41.50
5. Overtime Shift Differential	\$41.00	45.50

6. In addition to the charge for the grader’s time per hour, an additional charge of \$2.00 per hour shall be charged to regular and overtime hours worked at a resident location on a shift beginning after 3:00 p.m.

(b) Travel time and costs:

1. Time for travel to and from the grader’s headquarters for grading services at a non-resident or part-time resident location, or on non-scheduled days at a resident location shall be charged at the same rate as grading services provided.

2. Mileage and per diem to and from the grader’s headquarters for grading services at a non-resident or part-time resident location, or on non-scheduled days at a resident location shall be reimbursed at the prevailing rates provided in Section 112.061, F.S.

(4) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 570.07(23), 583.04 FS. Law Implemented 583.051, 583.052 FS. History–New 8-13-92, Formerly 5E-8.010, Amended 9-30-96, 9-5-01, 10-1-06, 7-1-10,_____.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
14-15.0081 Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate Schedule

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Florida Department of Transportation is proposing changes to the Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate Schedule to establish tolls for the I-4/Lee Roy Selmon Expressway Interchange (Connector), a SunPass-only facility connecting I-4 and the Lee Roy Selmon Expressway in Tampa. Section 338.155(1), Florida Statutes, does not permit the use of the State’s toll facilities without paying a toll.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Department is proposing to toll the Connector, a limited-access interchange that extends from the Lee Roy Selmon Expressway north along the west side of 31st Street to I-4 in Tampa. This is an elevated

roadway that includes a series of separate ramps intended to improve the regional movement of traffic throughout the Tampa Bay area and provide dedicated truck lanes for direct access to the Port of Tampa. It is consistent with proposed improvements to I-4, the Lee Roy Selmon Reversible Lanes Project, and the Causeway Boulevard Port Access Improvement Project. Tolls are proposed to be collected from vehicles using the SunPass and TOLL-BY-Plate electronic toll collection programs by an overhead gantry located on the project south of 7th Avenue.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 334.044(2), 338.155(1) FS.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 338.155, 338.221, 338.222, 338.2215, 338.2216, 338.223, 338.231, 338.233 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: September 30, 2010, 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: This rulemaking hearing is being held as a statewide webinar proceeding which can be accessed by registering at the following website: www.floridasturnpike.com/tools_tollrates.cfm

For those persons who do not have access to the World Wide Web wishing to participate can attend in person at the site access location.

SITE ACCESS LOCATION IS LOCATED AT:
PLACE: Florida Department of Transportation, District 7, Executive Conference Room, 11201 North Malcolm McKinley Drive, Tampa, FL 33612

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Deanna R. Hurt, Senior Attorney and Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Florida Department of Transportation, Office of the General Counsel, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Deanna R. Hurt, Senior Attorney and Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Florida Department of Transportation, Office of the General Counsel, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

14-15.0081 Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate Schedule.

The Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate Schedule, adopted November 15, 1987, and amended on February 8, 1988, August 1, 1988, February 2, 1989, May 10, 1989, July 1, 1991, August 1, 1991, November 6, 1991, July 11, 1993, November 28, 1993, September 18, 1994, June 6, 1995, July 9, 1995, January 1, 1996, March 31, 1996, April 28, 1996, June 2, 1996, July 28, 1996, September 23, 1997, November 24, 1997, February 12, 1998, June 30, 1998, July 29, 1998, January 6, 1999, February 9, 1999, April 29, 1999, June 21, 1999, September 4, 2001, March 26, 2002, and April 10, 2003, October 1, 2003, December 11, 2003, March 7, 2004, May 20, 2004, November 1, 2005, February 5, 2006, July 27, 2006, October 26, 2006, January 15, 2007, May 17, 2010, and _____, is hereby incorporated by this rule and made a part of the rules of the Department. Copies of this Department of Transportation Toll Facilities Description and Toll Rate Schedule and any amendments thereto are available at no more than cost.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 334.044(2), 338.155(1) FS. Law Implemented 338.155, 338.221, 338.222, 338.2215, 338.2216, 338.223, 338.231, 338.233 FS. History--New 11-15-87, Amended 2-8-88, 8-1-88, 2-2-89, 5-10-89, 7-1-91, 8-1-91, 11-6-91, 7-11-93, 11-28-93, 9-18-94, 6-6-95, 7-9-95, 1-1-96, 3-31-96, 4-28-96, 6-2-96, 7-28-96, 9-23-97, 11-24-97, 2-12-98, 6-30-98, 7-29-98, 1-6-99, 2-9-99, 4-29-99, 6-21-99, 9-4-01, 3-26-02, 4-10-03, 10-1-03, 12-11-03, 3-7-04, 5-20-04, 11-1-05, 2-5-06, 7-27-06, 10-26-06, 1-15-07, 5-17-10, _____.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: 33-501.401
RULE TITLE: Admissible Reading Material
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to clarify that staff shall remove any improper packing material from admissible reading material before providing the contents to the receiving inmate.
SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Admissible Reading Material.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 944.09, 944.11 FS.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 944.11 FS.
IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Kendra Lee Jowers, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

33-501.401 Admissible Reading Material.

(1) through (25) No change.

(26) No packaging other than standard envelopes shall be given to inmates. The following types of packaging shall be removed by staff before providing the contents to the inmate: boxes, padded envelopes, envelopes that include metal parts, multilayer packaging, bubble wrap, packing peanuts, or other forms of extra packaging.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09, 944.11 FS. Law Implemented 944.11 FS. History—New 10-8-76, Amended 3-3-81, 9-24-81, Formerly 33-3.12, Amended 6-9-87, 3-11-91, 12-17-91, 3-30-94, 11-2-94, 5-10-98, 10-20-98, Formerly 33-3.012, Amended 3-21-00, 8-10-00, 10-13-02, 7-2-03, 12-30-04, 9-5-05, 8-1-06, 6-16-09, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
33-601.830 Death Row

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to set forth the conditions, privileges, monitoring, and review of death row.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Death row.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 944.09 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Kendra Lee Jowers, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

33-601.830 Death Row.

(1) Definitions.

(a) Death Row – the single-cell special housing status of an inmate who, upon conviction or adjudication of guilt of a capital felony, has been sentenced to death. Death row housing cells shall be separate from general population housing.

(b) Institutional Classification Team (ICT) – the team consisting of the warden, assistant warden, classification supervisor, and chief of security that is responsible for making inmate status decisions and for making other recommendations to the state classification office, regional director, and warden.

(c) Death Warrant Phases – the three stages of death row housing status that occur after an inmate's death warrant has been signed by the Governor. The three stages are as follows:

1. Phase I begins when an execution date is set.

2. Phase II begins at 8:00 a.m. seven calendar days prior to an inmate's set execution date.

3. Phase III refers to the status of an inmate whose death warrant has been signed by the Governor but who does not have an execution date due to a stay. Phase III inmates will have the same privileges as all other death row inmates except as otherwise provided in this rule.

(d) State Classification Office (SCO) – a staff member at the central office level who is responsible for the review of inmate classification decisions. Duties include approving, modifying, or rejecting ICT recommendations.

(2) An inmate who is not under sentence of death may be housed on death row when:

(a) The inmate's death sentence has been overturned and the inmate is awaiting resentencing;

(b) The inmate is assigned to work in death row housing;

or

(c) The warden has declared an emergency requiring use of death row housing for inmates not under sentence of death. In this instance, the warden shall notify the Deputy Secretary of Institutions or designee of the housing arrangement.

(3) Reviews.

(a) Annual Reviews – At least annually, a death row inmate shall be reviewed by his classification officer to determine overall institutional adjustment based on the inmate's disciplinary history, participation in programming, and cooperation with staff. This review shall be entered into the Department's electronic inmate database.

(b) ICT Reviews – The ICT shall conduct a review of a death row inmate when the inmate:

1. Is found guilty of a disciplinary report; or

2. Has had restrictions placed on his outdoor exercise pursuant to subparagraph (5)(i)3. This review shall be conducted every six months after imposition of the restriction.

(4) Monitoring Death Row Inmates – Staff shall monitor death row inmates as follows:

(a) At least every 30 minutes by a correctional officer;

(b) Daily by the shift supervisor;

(c) Weekly by the chief of security;

(d) Weekly by the warden and assistant wardens having responsibility over the death row unit;

(e) Daily by a clinical health care person;

(f) Weekly by the chaplain; and

(g) Weekly by a classification officer, or more frequently as disciplinary incidents may require.

(6) Restraints and Escort Requirements.

(a) Prior to opening a death row cell for any reason, staff members shall restrain the inmate.

(b) A minimum of two officers shall be physically present whenever a death row cell door is opened.

(c) Prior to escorting an inmate from a death row cell for any activity within the housing unit, the inmate shall be thoroughly searched. If the inmate is escorted outside the immediate housing unit, the inmate will be strip searched and restraint devices (handcuffs, waist chain, black box, and leg irons) shall be used.

(d) Once an inmate is properly restrained and searched and his cell is secured, only one officer is required to accompany the inmate.

(e) Except for visitation purposes, if more than one inmate is out of his cell within the death row unit at a time, there shall be one officer accompanying each inmate, and the inmates shall be kept at a distance from each other to preclude any unauthorized physical contact.

(5) Conditions and Privileges – the following conditions and privileges apply to all death row inmates except Phase I and Phase II inmates.

(a) Clothing and Bedding – Unless there is a clear indication of a security concern, death row inmates will be issued clothing and bedding similar to that issued to the general population, except that death row inmates will be distinguished by designated different clothing that must be worn whenever they are out of the death row unit for the purpose of escort or transport. Shower slides or personal canvas shoes will be provided as regulation foot wear. No death row inmate will be issued a belt. Bedding and linen exchange shall be the same as is provided to the general inmate population, and any restrictions shall be based on potential harm to individuals or threat to the security of the institution. The senior correctional officer on duty must initially approve the decision to make an exception to the general bedding and linen exchange and shall document the action on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing. Form DC6-229 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. The duty warden shall make the final decision regarding the appropriateness of the action no later than the next working day.

(b) Comfort Items – Unless there is a clear indication of a security concern, inmates on death row shall be permitted personal hygiene items and other medically needed or prescribed items, such as eye glasses and hearing aids. At a minimum, death row inmates will be provided a toothbrush, toothpaste, a bar of soap, a towel or paper towels, toilet tissue, and feminine hygiene products for women.

(c) Personal Property – Inmates on death row shall be allowed to possess personal property such as watches, rings, stamps, envelopes, writing paper, and approved televisions, fans, and walkman-type radios with headphones unless there is a clear indication of a security concern. Each inmate may possess no more than one approved television, fan, and radio with headphones.

(d) Canteen – Death row inmates shall be permitted to make authorized canteen orders once per week.

(e) Writing Utensils – Inmates on death row shall possess only security pens, with a possession limit of four. If no security pens are available, an inmate will be allowed to sign out a regular pen from the assigned officer, which must be returned upon completion of preparation of the document. Care will be taken to ensure that an inmate who requests a pen in order to prepare legal documents or legal mail or to file a grievance with the Department has access to a pen for a time period sufficient to prepare the legal mail, documents, or grievances.

(f) Reading Material – Inmates shall be provided access to admissible reading material as provided in Rule 33-501.401, F.A.C., unless there is an indication of a threat to the safety, security, or sanitation of the institution. If it is determined that there is such a threat, the material will be removed. Removal of reading material shall be documented and reviewed in accordance with paragraph (5)(h).

(g) Televisions – An inmate on death row may possess a television in his cell. Approved televisions may be purchased from the institutional canteen; otherwise, televisions will be provided by the Department, if available, as follows:

1. As inmates are placed on death row, their names will be placed in a television logbook. As televisions become available, the televisions will be assigned to inmates in the order that their names appear in the logbook.

2. Inmates shall be allowed to operate televisions between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 11:30 p.m. unless otherwise authorized or restricted by the warden or designee. Televisions will be turned off during count procedures.

3. Televisions shall only be operated with headphones or earplugs.

4. Inmates in disciplinary confinement will have their televisions removed. The television will then be assigned to the next eligible inmate as indicated by the television logbook. Inmates who are guilty of a disciplinary infraction and who do not have televisions will have their names removed from the eligible list until their disciplinary confinement time is completed. Their names will then be added to the bottom of the list.

5. Inmates transferring from the institution for twenty-four hours or longer will have their televisions reassigned to the next eligible inmate, as indicated by the logbook.

6. Altering the television, earphones, or any parts thereof, including the electrical cord, will result in disciplinary action and possible loss of television privileges.

(h) Removal or Denial of Items – Any item may be denied an inmate or removed from a death row cell to prevent the inmate from inflicting injury to himself or others, to prevent the destruction of property or equipment, or to prevent the inmate from impeding security staff from accomplishing functions essential to the unit and institutional security. The

senior correctional officer on duty must initially approve the decision to deny or remove clothing, bedding, or any other items from the cell and document the action on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing. Removal of any personal property item will also be documented by security staff on Form DC6-220, Inmate Impounded Personal Property List, and signed by the inmate designating what personal items were removed. Form DC6-220 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C. The original Form DC6-220 will be placed in the inmate's property file, and a copy of the form will be given to the inmate for his records. The duty warden shall make a final decision regarding the appropriateness of any removal no later than the next working day. If an inmate's clothing is removed, a modesty garment shall be provided to the inmate immediately; if the inmate chooses not to wear the garment, it shall be left in the cell, and this action shall be documented on Form DC6-229. Under no circumstances will the inmate be left without a means to cover himself. If items are removed from a death row cell pursuant to this paragraph, staff shall re-assess the need for continued restriction every 72 hours thereafter and document the assessment on Form DC6-229. The warden, based on this assessment, will make a final determination on the continued denial or return of the items and document the decision on Form DC6-229. The items will be returned to the inmate when no further behavior or threat of behavior of the type leading to the restriction is present.

(i) Exercise – an exercise schedule shall be implemented to ensure a minimum of six hours per week of exercise out-of-doors. Such exercise periods shall be documented on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing.

1. Medical restrictions can place limitations on an inmate's exercise periods. A disabled inmate who is unable to participate in the normal exercise program will have an exercise program developed for him that will accomplish the need for exercise and take into account the particular inmate's limitations. Recreational equipment may be available for such exercise periods provided the equipment does not compromise the safety or security of the institution. The reasons for any medically-based exercise restrictions shall be documented on Form DC6-229.

2. The ICT is authorized to deny exercise for an individual inmate when the inmate is found guilty of a major rule violation as defined in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. Inmates shall be notified in writing of this decision and may appeal through the grievance procedure. The denial of exercise shall be for no more than 15 days per incident and for no longer than 30 days in cumulative length. If the inmate requests a physical fitness program handout, the wellness specialist or the confinement officer shall provide the inmate with an in-cell exercise guide; this shall be documented on Form DC6-229.

3. The ICT is authorized to restrict the place and manner of outdoor exercise, such as an inmate's ability to interact with other inmates or use exercise equipment, if the inmate has been convicted of:

a. Assault or battery, murder, or attempted murder of a correctional officer, volunteer, visitor, or other inmate within an institution; or

b. Escape or attempted escape.

4. Phase III inmates shall be restricted from exercise pursuant to subparagraph (13)(b)8.

(j) Telephone Privileges – When alternative means of access are not feasible, telephone privileges shall be allowed for emergency situations, such as notifications of family deaths, and when necessary to ensure the inmate's access to attorneys or the courts. The necessity of the telephone call may be verified before the inmate is allowed to make the call. Calls to attorneys will not be monitored.

(k) Visitation – Death row visits shall be contact visits unless security concerns indicate that a non-contact visit is necessary, in which case the non-contact visit shall be approved by the warden in advance. Visitation shall be on Saturday or Sunday (only one day of visitation per week per inmate) between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. The visitation provisions of Chapter 33-601, F.A.C., otherwise apply. News media visits shall be in accordance with Rule 33-104.203, F.A.C.

(l) Library Services – Inmates shall be allowed to check out library books once weekly, with a possession limit of four books.

(m) Self-Improvement Programs – Inmates shall be permitted to participate in self-improvement programs unless participation poses a security threat to inmates or staff. Such programs shall take place in the inmate's housing area in a manner that conforms to the need for security.

(6) Personal Hygiene – Inmates on death row shall meet the same personal hygiene standards required of the general population.

(7) Correspondence – Correspondence shall be in accordance with Chapter 33-210, F.A.C.

(8) Attorney Visits – Attorney visits shall be in accordance with Rule 33-601.711, F.A.C.

(9) Legal Access – Legal access for all death row inmates except those on Phase I and II of an active death warrant shall be as follows:

(a) Inmates shall be permitted to have access to their personal legal files and law books, to correspond with the law library, to have the law library deliver legal materials to the inmate's cell, and to correspond with inmate law clerks. Efforts shall be made to accommodate the research needs of inmates on death row who demonstrate that they need to meet a deadline imposed by law, rule, or order of court, including the provision of opportunities to visit a secure, single-person room

within the law library at least once per week for up to two hours if security concerns permit. Death row inmates using the law library will be required to stay in a secure, single-person room in order to conduct research and draft legal documents; materials will be obtained via non-contact interaction with library staff or inmate law clerks under the supervision of security staff. Inmates may be required to conduct legal business through correspondence rather than a personal visit to the law library if security requirements prevent a personal visit.

(b) Written inmate requests for legal assistance shall be directed to the librarian or designee and shall be responded to within two working days of receipt, not including the day of receipt. Specific requests for cases, statutes, or other reference materials or requests for legal supplies or forms shall be responded to by means of correspondence. However, written inmate requests for legal assistance that are broad in scope, contain incorrect references to research materials, or contain styling or content errors that indicate the inmate lacks an understanding of the law or legal research or that he may be impaired shall be responded to by personal interview with an inmate law clerk or the librarian or designee.

(c) Inmates shall be limited to the receipt of no more than 15 research items from the law library at any one time. Research items are defined as photocopies of cases, statutes, and other reference materials provided by the law library and do not include the inmate's personal legal papers, pleadings, or transcripts. Institutions shall require that inmates return all research materials supplied previously by the law library or explain why some or all research materials issued previously must be retained in order to receive additional materials. Institutions shall also limit the accumulation of research materials when their possession in an inmate's cell creates a safety, sanitation, or security hazard.

(d) Illiterate and impaired inmates shall be permitted to request a visit with an inmate law clerk by making an oral request to the correctional staff working in the unit. Upon receipt of the oral request, the correctional staff shall contact the law library to schedule a visit between the inmate and inmate law clerk. The inmate shall be required to remain in a secure, single-person room in the law library and have non-contact interaction with the inmate law clerk.

(e) Indigent inmates shall be provided paper, security pens, and envelopes in order to prepare and send legal papers.

(10) Diet and meals shall be provided in accordance with Chapter 33-204, F.A.C.

(11) Form DC6-228, Inspection of Special Housing Record, shall be maintained in each death row unit. Form DC6-228 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. Each staff person shall sign the form when entering and leaving the death row unit. Prior to departure, each staff member shall indicate any specific problems, including any inmate who requires special attention. Upon completion, Form DC6-228 will be maintained in the housing area and forwarded

to the correctional officer chief on a weekly basis, where it will be maintained on file pursuant to the current retention schedule.

(12) Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing, shall be maintained for each inmate in the death row unit. Form DC6-229 shall be maintained in the housing area for one week, after which the form will be forwarded to the warden for review. Once reviewed, these forms will be forwarded to classification to be filed in each inmate's respective file. Form DC6-229 shall be utilized to document any and all activities, including cell searches, items removed, showers, recreation, haircuts, and shaves. Form DC6-229B, Daily Record of Special Housing – Supplemental, may be used if further writing space is needed. Form DC6-229B is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. Additionally, staff shall fully and completely document when:

(a) There is an unusual occurrence in the inmate's behavior;

(b) It becomes necessary to notify the medical department;

(c) The inmate refuses food;

(d) The inmate changes cells;

(e) Medical staff performs any function, such as dispensing medication;

(f) The inmate's diet is ordered to be changed;

(g) Complaints are received and medical treatment is therefore given;

(h) The classification officer conducts a review;

(i) The inmate engages in disruptive behavior requiring that official action be taken; or

(j) Disciplinary violations occur.

(13) Death Warrants – Upon receipt of a death warrant signed by the Governor authorizing execution, the warden or designee will determine the housing location of the inmate. Inmates housed at Union Correctional Institution will be immediately transferred to Florida State Prison. Upon arrival, the warden will inform the inmate of the death warrant, and the inmate shall be allowed to contact his attorney and a family member at state expense. If the inmate is housed at Lowell Correctional Institution, the inmate shall not be transferred to Florida State Prison until Phase II. The warden at Lowell will inform the inmate of the death warrant and allow the inmate to contact her attorney and a family member at state expense.

(a) At the initiation of Phase I, the warden of Florida State Prison shall notify the Assistant Secretary of Institutions and the regional director. Wardens of surrounding institutions shall be informed should circumstances warrant the activation of a rapid response team. Local law enforcement agencies shall also be notified.

(b) Conditions and privileges for Phase I and Phase II inmates.

1. Phase I and Phase II inmates may possess the following state issued property:

- a. A standard issue of clothing.
 - b. One bed.
 - c. One mattress.
 - d. One pillow.
 - e. A standard issue of bedding.
 - f. One toothbrush.
 - g. One tube of toothpaste.
 - h. One bar of soap.
 - i. One towel.
 - j. One pair of underwear.
 - k. Toilet tissue as needed.
 - l. Six sheets of stationery.
 - m. Three envelopes.
 - n. A maximum of 10 religious texts distributed by the institutional chaplain.
 - o. Writing paper distributed by the library as needed.
 - p. Notary services upon request.
 - q. One security pen.
 - r. One television, and
 - s. Form DC1-303, Request for Administrative Remedy or Appeal, and Form DC6-236, Inmate Request, as needed. Forms DC1-303 and DC6-236 are incorporated by reference in Rule 33-103.019, F.A.C.
2. The inmate’s visiting list shall be frozen once an execution date is set. No additional visitors will be added to a Phase I or Phase II inmate’s approved visiting list. All visits shall be non-contact, except that the inmate may receive a one-hour contact visit on the day of execution.
3. News media visits and interviews will be in accordance with Chapter 33-104, F.A.C.
4. Inmate bank access shall be the same as for any other inmate, except that Phase II inmates may not request more than two special withdrawals during the week.
5. Canteen privileges will be allowed in accordance with paragraph (5)(d) above but may be restricted or denied if they pose a security threat. Canteen orders shall be reviewed by the administrative lieutenant prior to delivery.
6. Inmates may request in writing to the librarian and receive legal materials from the law library. All such requests are to be routed through the death watch supervisor. Copying services or notary services will be handled by staff without the involvement of any inmate.
7. The inmate shall be allowed to receive periodical subscriptions but may not order new subscriptions.
8. Exercise for all inmates with signed death warrants, including Phase III inmates, shall be suspended. However, an inmate shall be permitted to resume exercise and recreation in accordance with subparagraphs (5)(i)1.-3. if he remains in Phase III status longer than 90 days.
- (14) All death row inmates remain subject to disciplinary action for violation of rules and regulations.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 944.09 FS. History–New _____.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
33-602.220	Administrative Confinement
33-602.221	Protective Management
33-602.222	Disciplinary Confinement

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rules is to: amend Form DC4-650, incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C., to state that the form should be placed in an inmate’s infirmary or medical record upon completion of or discharge from observation status; to replace references to “psychologists” and “psychological specialists” with “mental health clinicians” and “mental health specialists,” respectively; to clarify library privileges in administrative confinement; to replace references to “certified research aides” with “certified law clerks”; and to generally clean up form references and amend the language for grammatical accuracy.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Security Operations.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 20.315, 944.09, 944.34, 945.04 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Kendra Lee Jowers, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

- 33-602.220 Administrative Confinement.
 - (1) Definitions.
 - (a) No change.
 - (b) Bureau of Braille and Talking Book Library – ~~refers to~~ the agency that provides books on tape, Braille books, and other auxiliary aids for individuals who, due to a disability, are unable to read books in print.
 - (c) Central Office ADA Coordinator – ~~refers to~~ the employee responsible for implementing the provisions of Title I and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act within the Department.
 - (d) through (f) No change.
 - (g) Clinical health care personnel – where used herein, refers to a physician, clinical associate, nurse, correctional medical technician certified ~~Correctional Medical Technician~~

~~Certified (CMTC), mental health clinician psychologist, psychology intern, psychology resident, or mental health specialist psychological specialist.~~

(h) Institutional Classification Team (ICT) – ~~where used herein,~~ refers to the team consisting of the ~~warden Warden~~ or ~~assistant warden Assistant Warden,~~ classification supervisor Classification Supervisor, a correctional officer chief, and other members as necessary when appointed by the warden or designated by rule. The ICT is responsible for making work, program, housing, and inmate status decisions at a facility and for making other recommendations to the State Classification Office (SCO).

(i) State Classification Office (SCO) – ~~refers to~~ a staff member at the ~~central office Central Office~~ level who is responsible for the review of inmate classification decisions. Duties include approving, modifying, or rejecting ICT recommendations.

(j) Security pen – ~~refers to~~ a specially designed flexible ink pen that bends under pressure and has a tip that retracts under excessive pressure.

(k) Senior correctional officer – ~~refers to~~ a staff member with the rank of correctional officer lieutenant or above.

(l) No change.

(m) Institutional Classification Team Docket – ~~refers to~~ the official record of an Institutional Classification Team hearing.

(n) Offender Based Information System (OBIS) – ~~refers to~~ an electronic data system used by the Department of Corrections to record and retrieve offender information.

(o) Major rule violation – where used herein, refers to means any assault, battery, or attempted assault or battery; any intentional lewd or lascivious exhibition in the presence of staff or visitors; any spoken or written threat towards any person; inciting or attempting to incite or participating in any riot, strike, mutinous act, or disturbance; fighting; possession of weapons, ammunition, explosives, or escape paraphernalia; and any escape or escape attempt.

(p) Lewd or Lascivious Exhibition – An inmate commits a lewd or lascivious exhibition when the inmate:

1. Intentionally masturbates;

2. Intentionally exposes the genitals without authorization;

or

3. Intentionally commits any other sexual act that does not involve actual physical or sexual contact with the victim, including, but not limited to, sadomasochistic abuse, sexual bestiality, or the simulation of any act involving sexual activity in the presence of a staff member or volunteer.

(2) Procedures for Placement in Administrative Confinement.

(a) Administrative confinement is a temporary confinement status that may limit conditions and privileges as provided in subsection (5) as a means of promoting the

security, order, and effective management of the institution. Otherwise the treatment of inmates in administrative confinement shall be as near to that of the general population as assignment to administrative confinement shall permit. Any deviations shall be fully documented as set forth in the provisions of this rule.

(b) When a decision is made to place an inmate in administrative confinement, the reason for such placement shall be explained to the inmate and the inmate shall be given an opportunity to present verbal comments on the matter. The inmate shall also be allowed to submit a written statement. Prior to placing the inmate in administrative confinement, the inmate shall be given a pre-confinement health assessment to include a physical and mental health evaluation that shall be documented in the health care record. Inmates shall be weighed upon admission to administrative confinement, at least once a week while in administrative confinement, and upon leaving administrative confinement. The weight of the inmate shall be recorded on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing. Form DC6-229 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. When an official places an inmate in administrative confinement, this action shall be documented in the electronic classification contact log in OBIS. This entry shall fully state the circumstances surrounding and reasons for placing the inmate in administrative confinement and a summary of the inmate's comments. The reason must correspond with one of the criteria for placement provided in subsection (3) of this rule. This electronic entry shall be completed the same day the inmate is placed into confinement; and will establish the ICT 72-hour review appointment. Any written statements provided by the inmate shall be forwarded to the ICT for their consideration during the forthcoming 72-hour review.

(c) No change.

(3) Reasons for Placement in Administrative Confinement with time limits. Placement of an inmate in administrative confinement is authorized for the following reasons:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Inmates shall be placed in administrative confinement pending review of the inmate's request for protection from other inmates; (Rule 33-602.221, F.A.C.). The inmate shall be placed in administrative confinement by a senior correctional officer when the inmate presents a signed written statement alleging that the inmate fears for his safety from other inmates; and that the inmate feels there is no other reasonable alternative open to him. A senior correctional officer shall place an inmate in administrative confinement, pending review for protective management, based on evidence that such a review is necessary and the senior correctional officer determines that no other reasonable alternative is available. The inmate shall be encouraged to provide information and otherwise cooperate with the investigation of the matter. The

protective management process, including the ICT's action, shall be completed within 15 working days from the initial confinement of the inmate.

1. The ~~ICT Institutional Classification Team (ICT)~~ shall complete an OBIS electronic classification contact log entry approving the inmate's continuation in confinement. This entry will initiate an appointment for an investigation to be conducted. The investigator shall enter the results of the investigation in the electronic classification contact log in OBIS; this entry will automatically schedule an ICT review appointment.

2. If the inmate submits a request for release in writing at any time during the ICT review or investigation process, the housing supervisor shall provide the inmate with a Form DC6-203, Protection Waiver/Appeal Decision. Form DC6-203 is incorporated by reference in subsection (11) of this rule. The inmate shall complete Form DC6-203 and return it to the housing supervisor for submission to the ICT along with the inmate's written request.

3. Once the investigation is complete, the ICT shall interview the inmate to determine whether the inmate has a legitimate, verifiable need for protection. The ICT shall review all documentation available concerning the need for protection to include any written statements submitted by the inmate. The inmate's written request for release and ~~Form~~ the DC6-203 will also be reviewed. The following elements shall be considered in determining whether protective management is necessary:

a. through f. No change.

g. Other factors such as physical size, build, and age producing a risk from the general inmate population.

4. The ICT shall make recommendations concerning protective management based on the facts within 15 working days from the date of initial confinement. The ICT's findings and recommendations shall be entered in the electronic classification contact log in OBIS; this entry will automatically schedule an SCO review appointment. Whether the ICT recommends protective management or not, the inmate shall remain in administrative confinement at that facility pending review by the SCO. All non-electronic related documentation shall be made available to the SCO by the ICT. The ~~SCO State Classification Office~~ shall approve, disapprove, or return for additional information the recommendation of the ~~ICT Institutional Classification Team~~.

5. The ~~SCO State Classification Office (SCO)~~ shall determine within five working days whether protection is necessary based upon the investigation and any follow-up they deem appropriate. The SCO shall approve or disapprove placement of the inmate in protective management. The SCO's decision shall be documented in the electronic classification contact log in OBIS. If the SCO determines that a need for protection exists, they shall direct that the inmate shall be placed in a protective management unit or transferred to

resolve the inmate's need for protection. If a decision is made to transfer the inmate for housing in a protective management unit or to resolve the inmate's need for protection at the inmate's current location, the inmate shall be kept in administrative confinement until the transfer is completed. Transfers for protection needs shall be effected within five working days. SCO members are authorized to approve transfers. If the SCO determines that protective management is not necessary, the inmate may appeal this decision directly to the Office of the Secretary pursuant to Rules 33-103.007 and 33-103.011, F.A.C. The inmate shall be notified of the SCO's decision by the ICT. At the time of notification, the inmate shall be asked if he wants to appeal the decision. The inmate's acknowledgement of being informed of the SCO denial and the inmate's decision on whether or not to appeal shall be documented on the electronically produced Notification of Protective Management Disapproval, Form DC6-137, and the electronic contact log. Form DC6-137 is incorporated by reference in subsection (11) of this rule. The inmate shall remain in administrative confinement until the appeal process is complete.

6. No change.

(d) No change.

(e) An investigation, evaluation for change of status, or transfer is pending and the presence of the inmate in the general population might interfere with that investigation or present a danger to the inmate, other inmates, or to the security and order of the institution. An investigating officer shall have the authority to request that the senior correctional officer place the inmate in administrative confinement for this reason and the length of time spent in this status shall not exceed 15 working days unless one 5 working day extension is granted by the ICT. This extension shall be documented on the Daily Record of Special Housing, Form DC6-229. If it is necessary to continue the inmate's confinement beyond this first extension, written authorization must be obtained from the SCO for a 30 day extension. This authorization shall be attached to ~~the~~ Form DC6-229. The SCO shall have the authority to authorize one additional 30 day extension. Examples of circumstances for placing an inmate in administrative confinement for this reason include:

1. No change.

2. Special review against other inmates, disciplinary, program change, or management transfer. Transfers for this reason shall be given priority.

3. through 4. No change.

(f) No change.

(4) Administrative Confinement Facilities.

(a) The number of inmates housed in an administrative confinement cell shall not exceed the number of bunks in the cell. The only exception to this policy is during an emergency situation as declared by the warden or duty warden. The regional director of institutions and the emergency action

center in central office shall be advised of the emergency. If the emergency situation exists in excess of 24 hours, the warden or duty warden must get specific written authorization from the regional director of institutions to continue to house inmates beyond the 24-hour period. Prior to placing inmates in the same cell, the inmates will be interviewed by the housing supervisor to ensure that none of the inmates ~~constitutes~~ constitute a threat to any of the others.

(b) No change.

(c) Prior to placement of an individual in an administrative confinement cell, it shall be thoroughly inspected to ensure that it is in proper order, and the inmate housed in that cell shall then be held responsible for the condition of the cell. Form DC6-221, Cell Inspection, shall be used for this purpose. Form

DC6-221 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. Routine searches of each cell may be conducted at any time, but will be conducted, at a minimum, each time an inmate is removed from the cell for a shower. All searches shall be documented on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing. All inmates will be searched prior to entering the confinement unit and upon departure. All items entering the confinement unit will be thoroughly searched, to include at a minimum, food cart and trays, laundry and linens, and inmate property.

(d) The administrative confinement cells shall be physically separate from other confinement cells, and the cell doors will feature remotely controlled locking devices; whenever possible given the physical design of the facility, ~~The and the~~ number of inmates housed in an administrative confinement cell shall not exceed the number of bunks in the cell. Whenever such location is not possible, physical barriers shall preclude the cross association of those in administrative confinement with those in other ~~status~~ confinement status. Administrative confinement cells shall be built to permit verbal communication and unobstructed observation by the staff. The officers assigned will exercise care to maintain the noise within the unit to a reasonable level. Visual inspections shall be conducted of each cell, to include at a minimum; observations for clothes lines, pictures attached to the walls and lockers, windows or light fixtures covered with paper, clothes or towels, and air and heater vents that have been obstructed. When sufficient natural light is unavailable, interior cell lights shall be left on during day and evening hours.

(5) Conditions and Privileges.

(a) No change.

(b) Bedding and ~~Linen linen~~ – bedding and linen for those in administrative confinement shall be issued and exchanged the same as is provided to the general inmate population. Any exceptions shall be based on potential harm to individuals or a threat to the security of the institution. The shift supervisor or the confinement lieutenant must approve the action initially. Such exceptions shall be documented on Form DC6-229, and

the ~~chief~~ Chief of security Security shall make the final decision in regard to the appropriateness of the action no later than the next working day following the action.

(c) Personal Property – inmates shall be allowed to retain the same personal property as is permitted general population inmates unless there is a indication of a security problem, in which case removal or denial of any item shall be documented on Form DC6-229. An Inmate Impounded Personal Property List, Form DC6-220, designating what personal items were removed; shall be completed by security staff and signed by the inmate. The original will be placed in the inmate’s property file and a copy of the form will be given to the inmate. Form DC6-220 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.201, F.A.C. Inmates shall be allowed to possess religious items pursuant to the provisions of Rule 33-602.201, F.A.C. All property retained by the inmate must fit into the storage area provided.

(d) Comfort Items – inmates in administrative confinement shall be permitted the same personal hygiene items and other medically needed or prescribed items as is permitted general population inmates unless there is an indication of a security problem. Inmates in administrative confinement shall not possess any products that contain baby oil, mineral oil, cocoa butter, or alcohol. In the event certain items that inmates in administrative confinement are not normally prohibited from possessing are removed, the senior correctional officer shall be notified and must approve the action taken, or the item must be returned to the inmate. Action taken shall be recorded on the Daily Record of Special Housing, Form DC6-229, which must be reviewed by the ~~chief~~ Chief of security Security. Property receipts shall be given for any personal property removed. The following comfort items shall be provided as a minimum: toothbrush, toothpaste, bar of soap, towel or paper towels, ~~and~~ feminine hygiene products for women, and toilet tissue.

(e) through (f) No change.

(g) Canteen Items – inmates in administrative confinement shall be allowed to make canteen purchases once every other week. Items sold to administrative confinement inmates shall be restricted when reasonably necessary for institutional safety and security.

1. No change.

2. Inmates in administrative confinement shall be allowed to purchase a maximum of five non-food canteen items. Stamps, envelopes, security pens, and notebook paper; each count as one item. For example, three security pens count as one item. Twenty-five stamps or fewer shall count as one item and two packages or less of notebook paper shall count as one item.

(h) No change.

(i) Visiting – all visits for inmates in administrative confinement must be approved in advance by the warden or designee. The warden or designee shall notify the control room

in writing when approval is given in advance of the visitor arriving at the institution. Requests for inmates in administrative confinement to visit shall be in writing to the ICT. Those inmates who are a threat to the security of the institution shall be denied visiting privileges. Attorney-client visits shall be in accordance with Rule 33-601.711, F.A.C., and shall not be restricted except on evidence that the visit would be a threat to security and order. The warden or designee shall determine whether a pre-approved visit will be contact or non-contact in accordance with ~~based on one or all of the criteria set forth in subsection (2) of~~ Rule 33-601.735, F.A.C.

(j) No change.

(k) Legal Access – legal materials shall be as accessible to inmates in administrative confinement as to inmates in general population as long as security concerns permit. An inmate in confinement may be required to conduct legal business by correspondence rather than a personal visit to the law library if security requirements prevent a personal visit. However, all steps shall be taken to ensure the inmate is not denied needed access while in confinement. Although the inmate may not be represented by an attorney at any administrative hearing, access shall be granted for legal visits at any reasonable time during normal business hours to the inmate’s attorney or aide to that attorney. Indigent inmates shall be provided paper and writing utensils in order to prepare legal papers. Inmates who are not indigent shall be allowed to purchase paper, security pens, and envelopes for this purpose through a canteen order. An inmate with disabilities that hinder the preparation of legal correspondence will be allowed the use of auxiliary aids (writer/reader). An inmate who is provided an auxiliary aid shall also be allowed access to a certified law clerk ~~research aide~~ for the purpose of preparing legal documents, legal mail, or filing a grievance.

(l) No change.

(m) Writing Utensils ~~utensils~~ – inmates in administrative confinement may possess a maximum of four (4) security pens. Other types of pens and pencils shall be confiscated and stored until the inmate is released from administrative confinement status. Inmates who are in possession of working pens or pencils when placed in administrative confinement will be issued a security pen. Inmates who are not indigent must purchase additional pens when needed from the canteen. If security pens are unavailable, the inmate shall be allowed to sign out a regular pen from the confinement housing officer. All care shall be taken to ensure that an indigent inmate who requests access to a pen in order to prepare legal documents or legal mail or to file a grievance with the Department ~~department~~ has access to a pen for a time period sufficient to prepare the legal mail, documents, or grievances. An inmate who has been provided a “writer/reader” shall be allowed access to such for the purpose of reading or preparing correspondence.

(n) Reading materials – inmates in administrative confinement shall be provided access to admissible reading material as provided in Rule 33-501.401, F.A.C., unless there is an indication of a threat to the safety, security, or sanitation of the institution. If it is determined that there is a safety, security, or sanitation risk, the items will be removed. Such removal of reading materials shall be documented on Form DC6-229 in accordance with paragraph (9)(c) of this rule.

(o) Library – only one book at a time may be checked out. Books shall be checked out once weekly and inmates may possess no more than one soft-back library book at any given time. An inmate who receives services from the Bureau of Braille and Talking Book Library shall be allowed to have his or her tape player and devotional and scriptural materials and any other books on tape that are in compliance with the ~~the~~ admissibility requirements of ~~in~~ Rule 33-501.401, F.A.C. Inmates will be allowed to check out one book on tape per week and possess no more than one checked-out book at any given time. The actual number of tapes may be more than one per book.

(p) Exercise – those inmates confined on a 24-hour basis excluding showers and clinic trips may exercise in their cells. However, if confinement extends beyond a 30-day period, an exercise schedule shall be implemented to ensure a minimum of three hours per week of exercise out of doors. Such exercise periods shall be documented on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing. The ICT is authorized to restrict exercise for an individual inmate only when the inmate is found guilty of a major rule violation. Inmates shall be notified in writing of this decision and may appeal through the grievance procedure. The denial of exercise shall be for no more than 15 days per incident and for no longer than 30 days in cumulative length. If the inmate requests a physical fitness program handout, the wellness specialist or the confinement officer shall provide the inmate with an in-cell exercise guide and document such on ~~the Daily Record of Special Housing~~, Form DC6-229. Medical restrictions can also place limitations on the exercise periods. A disabled inmate who is unable to participate in the normal exercise program will have an exercise program developed for him or her that will accomplish the need for exercise and take into account the particular inmate’s limitations. Recreational equipment may be available for the exercise period provided such equipment does not compromise the safety or security of the institution. The reasons for any exercise restrictions shall be documented on ~~the Daily Record of Special Housing~~, Form DC6-229.

(q) If items of clothing, bedding, or property are removed in order to prevent the inmate from inflicting injury to himself or herself or others, to prevent destruction of property or equipment, or to prevent the inmate from impeding security staff from accomplishing functions essential to the unit and institutional security, staff shall re-assess the need for continued restriction every 72 hours thereafter. The warden,

based on this assessment, will make the final determination on the continued denial or return of the items. The items will be returned to the inmate when no further behavior or threat of behavior of the type leading to the restriction has occurred.

(6) Restraint and Escort Requirements.

(a) Prior to opening any cell for any purpose, including exercise, medical or disciplinary call-outs, telephone calls, recreation, and visits, all inmates in the cell shall be handcuffed behind their backs; unless documented medical conditions require that an inmate be handcuffed in front. In such cases, waist chains will be used in addition to the handcuffs.

(b) through (e) No change.

(f) Any inmate who has demonstrated behavior that is or could be harmful to him or herself shall be designated as a special risk inmate. If the inmate demonstrates bizarre, mentally disordered, or self-destructive behavior, the medical department shall be immediately contacted to determine if special watch or suicide watch procedures shall be initiated. Suicidal inmates shall be removed to a designated area where a correctional officer or health care staff provides observation. Visual checks shall be made in accordance with medical protocols or at least every 30 minutes and shall be documented on Form DC4-650, Observation Checklist, until the inmate is no longer considered a special risk inmate. All actions taken by staff with regard to special risk inmates shall be documented on Form DC6-229 and followed with an Incident Report, Form DC6-210. ~~Form DC6-210 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.210, F.A.C.~~ Form DC4-650 is incorporated by reference in subsection (11) of this rule.

(g) No change.

(7) Visits to Administrative Confinement. The following staff members shall be required to officially inspect and tour the administrative confinement unit. All visits by staff, other than the 30 minute checks described in paragraph (a) below, shall be documented on the Inspection of Special Housing Record, Form DC6-228. Form DC6-228 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. The staff member shall also document his or her visit on the Daily Record of Special Housing, Form DC6-229, if any discussion of significance ~~or~~ action or behavior of the inmate occurs or any important information is obtained ~~that~~ which may have an influence or effect on the status of confinement. These visits shall be conducted at a minimum of:

(a) ~~Every At least every~~ 30 minutes by a correctional officer, but on an irregular schedule. These checks shall be documented on Form DC6-209, Housing Unit Log.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) Weekly by the ~~chief~~ Chief of security Security (when on duty at the facility) except in case of riot or other institutional emergency.

(e) through (h) No change.

(8) Review of Administrative Confinement.

(a) No change.

(b) Any inmate assigned to administrative confinement for more than 30 days shall be given a psychological screening assessment by a mental health professional to determine his or her mental condition. The assessment shall include a personal interview if determined necessary by mental health staff. All such assessments shall be documented in the mental health record. The mental health clinician ~~psychologist~~ or mental health psychological ~~specialist~~ shall prepare a report to the ICT regarding the results of the assessment with recommendations. The ICT shall then make a decision regarding continuation of confinement. If the decision is to continue confinement, a psychological screening assessment shall be completed at least every 90-day period.

(c) If an inmate is confined for more than 30 days, the ICT shall interview the inmate and shall prepare a formal assessment and evaluation report after each 30 day period in administrative confinement. Such reports may be in a brief paragraph form detailing the basis for confinement, what has transpired since the last report, the decision concerning continued confinement, and the basis for that decision.

(d) No change.

(9) Administrative Confinement Records.

(a) ~~Form DC6-229, A~~ Daily Record of Special Housing, ~~Form DC6-229,~~ shall be maintained for each inmate as long as the inmate is in administrative confinement. ~~The~~ Form DC6-229 shall be utilized to document any activity such as cell searches, items removed, showers, recreation, haircuts and shaves, and also unusual occurrences such as refusal to come out of a cell or refusal to eat. If items that inmates in administrative confinement are not prohibited from possessing are denied or removed from the inmate, the shift supervisor or the confinement lieutenant must approve the action initially. The central office ADA coordinator shall be contacted within 24 hours if any item is removed that would be considered an auxiliary aid or device that ensures a disabled inmate an equal opportunity as a non-disabled inmate. The items denied or removed shall be documented on Form DC6-229 and the ~~chief~~ Chief of security Security shall make the final decision in regard to the appropriateness of that action no later than the next working day following the action. The housing supervisor shall make a notation of any unusual occurrences or changes in the inmate's behavior and any action taken. Changes in housing location or any other special action shall also be noted. ~~The~~ Form DC6-229 shall be maintained in the housing unit for 30 days, at which time the form shall be forwarded to the ICT for review. Once reviewed, these forms shall be forwarded to classification to be filed in the institutional inmate record.

(b) ~~Form DC6-229B, A~~ Daily Record of Special Housing – Supplemental, ~~Form DC6-229B,~~ shall be completed and attached to the current ~~Daily Record of Special Housing,~~ Form DC6-229; whenever additional written documentation is required concerning an event or incident related to the specific inmate. Form DC6-229B is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C.

(c) ~~Form DC6-228.~~ An Inspection of Special Housing Record, ~~Form DC6-228,~~ shall be maintained in each administrative confinement unit. Each staff person shall sign such record when entering and leaving the confinement unit. Prior to leaving the confinement unit, each staff member shall indicate any specific problems including any inmate who requires special attention. No other unit activities shall be recorded on Form DC6-228. Upon completion, ~~the~~ Form DC6-228 shall be maintained in the housing unit and

forwarded to the ~~chief~~ Chief of ~~security~~ Security on a weekly basis where it shall be maintained on file pursuant to the current retention schedule.

(d) ~~Form DC6-209.~~ A Housing Unit Log, ~~Form DC6-209,~~ shall be maintained in each confinement unit. Officers shall record all daily unit activities on Form DC6-209, to include any special problems or discrepancies noted. The completed Form DC6-209 shall be forwarded daily to the chief of security for review.

(10) Staffing Issues.

(a) Officers assigned to a confinement unit shall be reviewed at least every 18 months. The shift supervisor or confinement lieutenant shall initiate the review by having the officer complete section I of the Special Housing Unit Rotation Review, Form DC6-295. Form DC6-295 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.222, F.A.C. The required supervisor shall conduct an interview with the officer and complete section II of ~~the~~ Form DC6-295 and forward the form to the chief of security. The chief of security shall review personnel records, to include performance appraisals, incident reports, use of force reports, and any other documentation relevant to the officer's assignment and job performance; and shall interview the officer and ~~officer's~~ officers' supervisors for the period of review when necessary. The chief of security shall, upon completion of his or her review, complete section III of Form DC6-295 and forward the recommendation to the warden. The warden shall review the recommendation, request additional information if necessary, and make the final determination as to whether the officer continues in the current assignment or is rotated to another assignment. The warden's decision will be documented in section VI of ~~the~~ Form DC6-295 and returned to the chief of security for action. The chief of security shall maintain the completed Form DC6-295. Any officer assigned to a confinement post shall be authorized a minimum period of five days annual leave or a five day assignment to a less stressful post every six months.

(b) The ~~inspector general~~ Inspector General shall notify the warden and regional director of institutions of any officer involved in eight or more use of force incidents in an 18 month period. The regional director of institutions shall review the circumstances for possible reassignment.

(11) Forms. The following forms referenced in this rule are hereby incorporated by reference. A copy of any of these forms may be obtained from the Forms Control Administrator,

~~Office of Research, Planning and Support Services,~~ Department of Corrections, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500.

(a) Form DC4-650, Observation Checklist, effective ~~date~~ 4-8-08.

(b) Form DC6-203, Protection Waiver/Appeal Decision, effective ~~date~~ 1-19-03.

(c) Form DC6-137, Notification of Protective Management Disapproval, effective 1-19-03.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09, 945.04 FS. History--New 4-7-81, Amended 6-23-83, 3-12-84, Formerly 33-3.081, Amended 4-22-87, 8-27-87, 7-10-90, 12-4-90, 3-24-97, 4-26-98, 10-5-98, Formerly 33-3.0081, Amended 2-12-01, 2-5-02, 1-19-03, 4-1-04, 3-5-06, 10-31-06, 4-8-08, 6-25-08, 6-8-09, 7-5-10,_____.

33-602.221 Protective Management.

(1) Definitions.

(a) Administrative confinement – ~~Confinement refers to~~ the temporary removal of an inmate from the general population in order to provide for security and safety until such time as a more permanent inmate management decision can be concluded ~~such as disciplinary confinement, close management, protective management or transfer.~~

(b) Bureau of Braille and Talking Book Library – ~~refers to~~ the agency that provides books on tape, Braille books, and other auxiliary aids for individuals who, due to a disability, are unable to read books in print.

(c) Central Office ADA Coordinator – ~~refers to~~ the employee responsible for implementing the provisions of Title I and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act within the Department.

(d) Classification – ~~refers to~~ the system of processes that ~~which~~ divides inmates into groups for a variety of purposes including facility placement, custody assessment, work and program assessment and placement, housing assessment and placement, periodic reviews, and community, transition, and special needs assessments.

(e) Classification – External – ~~external,~~ refers to processes related to decisions regarding the custody and facility-placement of an inmate outside the secure perimeter of a facility.

(f) Classification – Internal – ~~internal,~~ refers to processes related to decisions regarding housing, work, and program-placement of an inmate within the secure perimeter of a facility.

(g) Housing Supervisor – ~~refers to~~ the correctional officer sergeant ~~Correctional Officer Sergeant~~ or above in charge of the protective management unit for a particular shift.

(h) Clinical Health Care Personnel – where used herein, refers to a physician, clinical associate, nurse ~~Physician, Clinical Associate, Nurse,~~ correctional medical technician

~~certified Correctional Medical Technician-Certified (CMTC), mental health clinician Psychologist, psychology intern, psychology resident, or mental health specialist Psychologist Specialist.~~

(i) Institutional Classification Team (ICT) – ~~where used herein,~~ refers to the team consisting of the warden or assistant warden, classification supervisor, a correctional officer chief, and other members as necessary when appointed by the warden or designated by rule. The ICT is responsible for making work, program, housing, and inmate status decisions at a facility and for making other recommendations to the State Classification Office (~~SCO~~).

(j) Protective Management = ~~where used herein refers to a special management status for the protection of inmates from other inmates in an environment as representative of that of the general population as is safely possible.~~

(k) Senior Correctional Officer = ~~refers to a staff member with the rank of correctional officer lieutenant Correctional Officer Lieutenant~~ or above.

(l) Special Management = ~~refers to the separation of an inmate from the general population in a structured environment for purposes of safety, security, and order of the facility.~~

(m) Special Risk Inmate = ~~refers to any inmate who has demonstrated behavior that is or could be harmful to himself.~~

(n) State Classification Office (SCO) = ~~refers to a staff member at the central office Central Office level who is responsible for the review of inmate classification decisions. Duties include the approving, modifying, or rejecting ICT of Institutional Classification Team recommendations.~~

(o) Review = where used herein, refers to the evaluation of pertinent information or documentation concerning an inmate’s protection status to determine if changes or modifications are required or recommended.

(p) Visit = where used herein, refers to the official inspection and tour of a protective management unit by a staff member.

(2) Procedures for Placement ~~placement~~ in Protective Management.

(a) Protective management is not disciplinary in nature, and inmates in protective management are not being punished and are not in confinement. The treatment of inmates in protective management shall be as near that of the general population as the individual inmate’s safety and security concerns permit.

(b) Inmates on death row, in close management, or in disciplinary confinement are not eligible for placement in protective management. However, if an inmate in one of these statutes requests protection, procedures outlined in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C., shall be completed.

(c) If it is determined that an inmate on death row, in close management, or in disciplinary confinement needs protection, the inmate will be afforded such protection in his or her current

status. Upon completion of that special status, the ICT ~~institutional classification team (ICT)~~ shall review the inmate’s need for protection and make recommendations to the SCO ~~state classification office (SCO)~~, who shall determine the appropriate action to resolve the inmate’s protection needs.

(d) When the SCO determines that protective management is appropriate for an inmate, the inmate shall be interviewed by the housing supervisor and a review shall be initiated to assess the inmate’s potential risk to or from other inmates in the unit. The completion of this review will be documented on Form DC6-235, Record of Protective Management. Form DC6-235 is incorporated by reference in subsection (10) of this rule. If the inmate can not be placed for this reason, the housing supervisor shall place or maintain the inmate in administrative confinement until the issue can be expeditiously resolved. The case shall be immediately forwarded to the ICT for review. The ICT shall review the case and interview the inmate and forward recommendations to the SCO. The SCO shall review the case and may interview the inmate and make a final decision to resolve protection issues.

(3) Protective Management Facilities.

(a) The number of inmates housed in a protective management cell housing units shall not exceed the number of beds in the cell. Exceptions may be made during an emergency situation as approved by the warden or duty warden, but such exceptions shall not continue for more than 24 hours without the specific written authorization of the regional director of institutions. Prior to placing inmates in the same cell, a determination shall be made by the housing supervisor that none of the inmates constitutes ~~constitute~~ a threat to any of the others. The housing supervisor shall ~~and~~ document such determination on Form DC6-235, Record of Protective Management.

(b) No change.

(c) Prior to placement of an individual in a protective management cell, the cell shall be thoroughly inspected to ensure that it the cell is in proper order. The officer conducting the inspection will complete and sign Form DC6-221, the Cell Inspection, Form DC6-221, attesting to the conditions of the cell. The inmate housed in that cell shall then be held responsible for the condition of the cell. Form DC6-221 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C.

(d) The protective management housing units shall be physically separate from other housing units; whenever possible given the physical design of the facility, and the number of inmates housed in protective management shall not exceed the number of bunks in the protective housing unit. Whenever such location is not possible, physical barriers shall preclude the cross association of those in protective management with those in other statuses. Protective management housing units shall be built to permit verbal communication and unobstructed observation by the staff.

(4) Conditions and Privileges.

(a) Clothing – ~~The inmates may wear shower slides or personal canvas shoes while in their housing units, but regulation shoes shall be required for work assignments. Otherwise~~ the clothing for inmates in protective management shall be the same as that issued and exchanged to the general inmate population except when there is an indication of a security or health problem or when additional clothing is required for a work assignment. In such cases the exceptions shall be documented on Form DC6-235, Record of Protective Management, and approved by the chief of security. Any item may be removed from the cell in order to prevent the inmate from inflicting injury to himself or herself or others, to prevent the destruction of property or equipment, or to prevent the inmate from impeding security staff from accomplishing functions essential to the unit and institutional security. If an inmate's clothing is removed, a modesty garment shall be immediately obtained and given to the inmate. If the inmate chooses not to wear the garment, the garment shall be left in the cell and this action shall be noted on Form DC6-235; ~~Record of Protective Management~~, stating the reasons for such denial. Under no circumstances will an inmate be left without a means to cover him or herself.

(b) No change.

(c) Personal Property – inmates shall be allowed to retain the same personal property as is permitted general population inmates unless there is an indication of a security problem, in which case removal or denial of any item shall be documented on Form DC6-235, Record of Protective Management, ~~and~~ Form DC6-220, Inmate Impounded Personal Property List, will be completed by security staff and signed by the inmate designating what personal items were removed. The original will then be placed ~~held~~ in the inmate's property file, and a copy of the form will be given to the inmate for his or her records. Form DC6-220 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.201, F.A.C. All property retained by inmates must fit into the storage area provided, which shall be the same size as provided for general population inmates.

(d) Comfort Items – inmates in protective management shall be permitted the same comfort items, personal hygiene items, and other medically needed or prescribed items as is permitted general population inmates unless there is an indication of a security problem. In the event that comfort items are taken from inmates in protective management, the senior correctional officer on duty shall be notified and must approve or disapprove the action taken. Action taken shall be documented on the Record of Protective Management, Form DC6-235, which must be reviewed by the chief of security. Property receipts shall be given for any personal property removed. The following comfort items shall be provided as a minimum: toothbrush, toothpaste, bar of soap, towel or paper towels, toilet tissue, and feminine hygiene products for women.

(e) Personal Hygiene – inmates in protective management shall meet the same standards in regard to personal hygiene as required of the general inmate population.

1. As a minimum each inmate in protective management shall shower at least three times per week or every day that the ~~an~~ inmate works.

2. No change.

(f) through (j) No change.

(k) Legal Access – inmates in protective management shall have access to the law library during evening or other hours when general population inmates are not present. If security reasons prevent a visit, access shall be provided through correspondence or visits from a certified law clerk ~~the inmate research aide~~. All steps shall be taken to ensure the inmate is not denied needed legal access while in protective management. Inmates shall be provided paper and writing utensils in order to prepare legal papers. Typewriters or typing services are not considered required items and will not be permitted in protective management housing units. However, an inmate with disabilities that hinder the preparation of legal correspondence will be allowed the use of auxiliary aids (writer reader). An inmate who is provided an auxiliary aid will be allowed access to a certified law clerk ~~research aide~~ for the purpose of preparing legal documents, legal mail, or filing a grievance.

(l) No change.

(m) Writing utensils – inmates in protective management shall be allowed to possess pens and pencils of the same type and number as those in general population. If it is determined that there is a safety, security, or sanitation risk, these items shall be confiscated and stored until the inmate is released from protective management status. The inmate shall be issued a security pen; if a security pen is unavailable the inmate shall be allowed to sign out a regular pen from the housing officer. All care shall be taken to ensure that an indigent inmate who requests access to a pen in order to prepare legal documents or legal mail or to file a grievance with the Department ~~department~~ has access to a pen for a time period sufficient to prepare the legal mail documents or grievances. An inmate who has been provided a “writer/reader” shall be allowed access to such for the purpose of preparing correspondence.

(n) Reading materials – reading materials, including scriptural and devotional materials and books that are in compliance with admissibility requirements in Rule 33-501.401, F.A.C., for inmates in the general population are allowed for those inmates in protective management units. If it is determined that there is a safety, security, or sanitation risk, the items will be removed. Such removal of reading materials will be documented on Form DC6-235 in accordance with paragraph (4)(c) of this rule. An inmate who receives services from the Bureau of Braille and Talking Book Library shall be allowed to have his or her ~~their~~ tape players and devotional and

scriptural materials and any other books on tape that are in compliance with admissibility requirements in Rule 33-501.401, F.A.C.

(o) No change.

(p) Exercise – an exercise schedule shall be implemented to ensure a minimum opportunity of three hours per week of exercise out of doors. The ICT is authorized to restrict exercise for an individual inmate when the inmate is found guilty of a major rule violation as defined in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C. Inmates shall be notified in writing of this decision and may appeal through the grievance procedure. The denial of exercise shall be for no more than 15 days per incident and for no longer than 30 days in cumulative length. If the inmate requests a physical fitness program handout, the wellness specialist or the housing officer shall provide the inmate with an in-cell exercise guide and document such on the Record of Protective Management, Form DC6-235. Medical restrictions may also place limitations on exercise periods. A disabled inmate who is unable to participate in the normal exercise program will have an exercise program developed for him or her that will accomplish the need for exercise and take into account the particular inmate’s limitations. Similar recreational equipment shall be available as is available for general population inmates for the exercise period provided that such equipment does not compromise the safety or security of the institution. The reasons for any exercise restrictions shall be documented on the Report of Protective Management, Form DC6-235.

(q) Religious activities – a weekly non-denominational service shall be held for protective management inmates in the chapel. This service shall be held at the protective management housing unit if security reasons prevent chapel service. The chaplain shall arrange for religious consultations between inmates and outside volunteers, counsel with clergy, and the opportunity to receive religious sacraments similar to that afforded to the general population when requested.

(r) Self-improvement programs – self-improvement programs shall be available in ~~the protective management their~~ housing unit; or in separate locations within the institution that conform with the need for security. Self-improvement programs include academic education, vocational training, correspondence courses or self-directed study activities, religious activities, quiet activities, ~~and~~ ~~or~~ letter writing.

(s) Any other activities ~~that which~~ take place outside the inmate’s cell. Inmates may refuse opportunities for out-of-cell activities; however, such refusals shall constitute a portion of the required minimum hours of out-of-cell time. Refusals shall be documented on Form DC6-235, Record of Protective Management.

(t) Other privileges shall be restricted on a daily case-by-case basis when such restrictions are necessary for the security, order or effective management of the institution. All such restrictions shall be documented on Form DC6-235, Record of Protective Management, and reported to the ICT.

The ICT is authorized to restrict privileges on a continuing basis after a determination that such restrictions are necessary for the security, order, or effective management of the institution. The ICT’s decision for continuing restriction shall be documented on Form DC6-235, ~~Record of Protective Management.~~

(5) Work Assignments.

(a) Within 10 days of the protective management determination, work opportunities consistent with medical grades shall be available to inmates in protective management during the day, evening, or night hours. All inmates shall be provided the opportunity for work assignments regardless of medical grade except when precluded by doctor’s orders for medical reasons. Work shall be cancelled for an individual inmate or a work squad when staff concludes the work or work assignment would subject the inmate to danger or if adequate staff protection is not available. Each occurrence of work cancellation will be documented with reasons for the action on Form DC6-210, Incident Report, and shall be reviewed by the warden or ICT the next working day. Refusal of a work assignment shall result in disciplinary action pursuant to Rules 33-601.301-.314, F.A.C. Inmates who refuse work assignments will not be allowed other housing unit activities. Those who accept work assignments shall be subject to awards of gain time pursuant to Rule 33-601.101, F.A.C., in the same manner as general population inmates.

(b) Inmates in protective management who are medically able to work and who do work shall be afforded an opportunity for at least an additional 20 hours of out-of-cell time per week for activities. Each protective management unit shall have a day room or common area equipped with similar equipment, recreational and otherwise, as those for general population inmates provided that such equipment does not compromise the safety or security of the institution.

(6) No change.

(7) Contact by Staff.

(a) The following staff members shall be required to officially inspect and tour the protective management unit. All visits by staff shall be documented on Form DC6-228, Inspection of Special Housing Record. Form DC6-228 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. The staff member shall also document his or her visit on the Record of Protective Management, Form DC6-235, if, during the visit by staff, any discussion of significance ~~or~~ action or behavior of the inmate occurs or any information is obtained ~~that which~~ may have an effect on the status of protective management. These visits shall be conducted at a minimum of:

1. ~~Every At least every~~ 30 minutes by a correctional officer, but on an irregular schedule.

2. through 4. No change.

5. Weekly by the ~~chief~~ Chief of ~~security~~ Security (when on duty at the facility) except in case of riot or other institutional emergency.

6. through 8. No change.

9. At least once a month by a member of the ICT Institutional Classification Team to ensure that the inmate's welfare is properly provided for, and to determine the time and method of release or any program changes.

(b) Any inmate who has demonstrated behavior that is or could be harmful to him or herself shall be designated as a special risk inmate. If the inmate demonstrates bizarre, mentally disordered, or self-destructive behavior, the medical department shall be immediately contacted to determine if special watch or suicide watch procedures shall be initiated. Suicidal inmates shall be removed to a designated area where a

correctional officer or health care staff provides observation. Visual checks shall be made in accordance with medical protocols or at least every 30 minutes and shall be documented on Form DC4-650, Observation Checklist, until the inmate is no longer considered a special risk inmate. All actions taken by staff with regard to special risk inmates shall be documented on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing, and followed with an Incident Report, Form DC6-210. Form DC6-229 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C., and Form DC4-650 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C.

(8) Review of Protective Management.

(a) The ICT Institutional Classification Team shall review inmates in protective management every week for the first 60 days. The goal shall be toward returning the inmate to general population as soon as the facts of the case indicate that this can be done safely.

(b) Any inmate assigned to protective management for more than 30 days shall be given a psychological screening assessment by a mental health professional to determine his or her mental condition. The assessment shall include a personal interview if deemed necessary by the mental health professional. All such assessments shall be documented in the mental health record. The mental health clinician psychologist or mental health psychological specialist shall prepare a report to the ICT regarding the results of the assessment with recommendations. The ICT shall then make a decision regarding continuation of the protection needs. Any recommendations by the mental health clinician psychologist or mental health psychologist specialist that the inmate be released from protective management shall be forwarded by the ICT to the SCO. If the decision is to continue protective management, a psychological screening assessment shall be conducted at least every 90-day period.

(c) In addition to the ICT's review as outlined in paragraph (8)(a) above, the ICT shall interview each inmate in protective management at least every 30 days and shall prepare a formal assessment and evaluation report. Such reports may be in a brief paragraph form detailing the basis for protection, what has transpired since the last report, the decision concerning continued protection, and the basis for that decision.

(d) The SCO State Classification Office (SCO) shall review all reports prepared by the ICT concerning an inmate's inmates protective management and may interview the inmate before determining the final disposition of the inmate's protective management status. However, the SCO State Classification Office shall conduct an on-site interview with each inmate at least once every six months or as often as necessary to determine if continuation, modification, or removal from protective management status is appropriate.

(e) If the inmate submits a request for release in writing at any time after being placed in protective management, the housing supervisor shall provide the inmate with a Form DC6-203, Protection Waiver/Appeal Decision. Form DC6-203 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C. The inmate shall complete Form DC6-203 and return it to the housing supervisor for submission to the ICT along with the inmate's written request. The ICT shall docket and review the inmate's request, and interview the inmate. The ICT shall submit their recommendation along with the Form DC6-203 and any other documentation to the SCO for final consideration. The SCO review and decision shall be conducted during the next routine on-site visit.

(9) Protective Management Records.

(a) A printed copy of the electronic Report of Protective Management, shall be kept for each inmate placed in protective management.

(b) Form DC6-228. An Inspection of Special Housing Record, Form DC6-228 shall be maintained in each protective management unit. Each staff person shall sign the record when entering and leaving the protective management unit. Prior to leaving the protective management unit, each staff member will indicate any specific problems including any inmate who requires medical attention. No other unit activities shall be recorded on Form DC6-228.

(c) Form DC6-235. A Record of Protective Management, Form DC6-235 shall be maintained for each inmate as long as the inmate is in protective management. Once the inmate is released from protective management, Form DC6-235 will be forwarded to classification to be filed in the institutional inmate record. This form shall be used to record any action, remarks, or disposition made on a specific inmate. Notations shall be made on Form DC6-235 by medical staff, the ICT, the SCO, or other staff dealing directly with the inmate. If items are denied or removed from the inmate, the senior correctional officer on duty must approve the action. The central office ADA coordinator will be contacted within 24 hours if any item is removed that would be considered an auxiliary aid or device that ensures a disabled inmate of equal opportunity as a non-disabled inmate. The items denied or removed will be documented on the Form DC6-235, and the chief of security will make the final decision in regard to the appropriateness of that action no later than the next working day following this action. The housing supervisor will document any unusual

occurrences or changes in the inmate’s behavior and any action taken. Changes in housing location or any other special action will also be documented.

(d) ~~Form DC6-209, A Housing Unit Log, Form DC6-209,~~ shall be maintained in each protective management unit. Officers shall record all daily unit activities on Form DC6-209, to include any special problems or discrepancies noted. The completed Form DC6-209 shall be forwarded daily to the chief of security for review. ~~Form DC6-209 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C.~~

(10) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09, 944.34, 945.04 FS. History—New 6-23-83, Amended 3-12-84, Formerly 33-3.082, Amended 6-4-90, 7-10-90, 12-4-90, 4-26-98, Formerly 33-3.0082, Amended 2-12-01, 1-19-03, 4-1-04, 6-8-09, 7-5-10,_____.

33-602.222 Disciplinary Confinement.

(1) Definitions.

(a) Bureau of Braille and Talking Book Library – ~~refers to~~ the agency that provides books on tape, Braille books, and other auxiliary aids for individuals who, due to a disability, are unable to read books in print.

(b) Central Office ADA Coordinator – ~~refers to~~ the employee responsible for implementing the provisions of Title I and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act within the Department.

(c) Clinical Health Care Personnel – where used herein, refers to a physician, clinical associate, nurse correctional medical technician certified (CMTC), mental health clinician ~~psychologist~~, psychology intern, psychology resident, or mental health psychological specialist.

(d) Review – where used herein, refers to the evaluation of pertinent information or documentation concerning an inmate’s disciplinary confinement status to determine if changes or modifications in the confinement status are required or recommended.

(e) Visit – where used herein, refers to the official inspection and tour of a confinement unit by a staff member.

(f) Disciplinary Confinement – ~~refers to~~ a form of punishment in which inmates found guilty of committing violations of the Department ~~department~~ rules are confined for specified periods of time to individual cells based upon authorized penalties for prohibited conduct.

(g) Disciplinary Hearing – ~~refers to~~ an administrative proceeding in which it is determined if sufficient evidence exists to find an inmate guilty of a rule violation.

(h) Disciplinary Team – ~~refers to~~ a team made up of at least two staff persons appointed by the warden, one of whom shall be a correctional officer lieutenant or above.

(i) Institutional Classification Team (ICT) – ~~where used herein,~~ refers to the team consisting of the warden or assistant warden, classification supervisor, a correctional officer chief, and other members as necessary when appointed by the warden or designated by rule. The ICT is responsible for making work, program, housing, and inmate status decisions at a facility and for making other recommendations to the State Classification Office ~~state classification office~~.

(j) Security Pen – ~~Pens~~ ~~refers to~~ a specially designed flexible ink pen that bends under pressure and has a tip that retracts under excessive pressure.

(k) Shift Supervisor – ~~refers to~~ the correctional officer in charge of security on any work shift.

(l) State Classification Office (SCO) – ~~refers to~~ a staff member at the central office level responsible for the review of inmate classification decisions including approving, modifying, or rejecting ICT recommendations.

(m) No change.

(2) Placement in Confinement.

(a) No change.

(b) Disciplinary confinement cells shall be physically separate from other confinement statuses whenever possible. Whenever such location is not possible, physical barriers shall preclude the cross association of those in disciplinary confinement with those in other housing statuses. The disciplinary confinement cells shall be approximately the same square footage as utilized for general population. Disciplinary confinement units shall be built to permit verbal communication and unobstructed observation by staff. Visual inspections shall be conducted of each cell, to include at a minimum; observations for clothes lines, pictures attached to the walls and lockers, windows or light fixtures covered with paper, clothes or towels, and air and heater vents that have been obstructed. When sufficient natural light is unavailable, interior cell lights shall be left on during day and evening hours.

(3) Disciplinary Confinement Cells.

(a) Inmates shall not be housed in disciplinary confinement cells in greater number than there are beds in the cells. The only exception to this policy is during an emergency situation as declared by the warden or duty warden. Any emergency situation shall be communicated to the regional director of institutions and to the Emergency Action Center in the central office. If this exception exists in excess of 24 hours, the warden or duty warden must get specific written authorization from the regional director of institutions to continue to house inmates beyond the 24-hour period in such conditions. Prior to placing inmates in the same cell, the inmates shall be interviewed by the housing supervisor to ensure that none of the inmates constitutes ~~constitute~~ a threat to any of the others.

(b) All disciplinary confinement cells shall be equipped with toilet facilities and running water for drinking and other sanitary purposes. Water in the cell can be turned off by correctional staff due to an inmate's inappropriate behavior that causes an interruption in the water system or the intentional misuse of water for an unauthorized purpose. In such event, the inmate occupant will be furnished an adequate supply of drinking water by other means to prevent dehydration. These actions shall be documented on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing. Form DC6-229 ~~is~~ ~~has been~~ incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C.

(c) Prior to the inmate's placement into, and after the inmate's removal from, a disciplinary confinement cell, the cell shall be thoroughly inspected to ensure that it is in proper order, and the inmate housed in that cell will then be held responsible for the condition of the cell. The correctional officer conducting the inspection shall complete and sign Form DC6-221, Cell Inspection, attesting to the condition of the cell. Form DC6-221 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. Routine searches of each cell are authorized at any time; but shall be conducted, at a minimum, each time an inmate is removed from the cell for a shower. All searches shall be documented on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing. All inmates shall be searched prior to entering the confinement unit and upon departure. All items entering the confinement unit shall be thoroughly searched, to include at a minimum; food carts and trays, laundry and linens, and inmate property.

(d) The officers assigned shall exercise care to maintain noise ~~levels~~ in confinement units at a reasonable level so as not to interfere with normal operating activities.

(4) Conditions and Privileges.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Personal Property. Inmates in confinement shall be allowed to retain stamps, eyeglasses, hearing aids, personal watches, and rings unless there is an indication of a security problem. Inmates in disciplinary confinement may also possess religious items pursuant to the provisions of Rule 33-602.201, F.A.C. If removal of any item in the inmate's possession is determined necessary, ~~the~~ correctional staff shall document their actions on ~~the~~ Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing, which shall be approved by the chief of security. The correctional staff shall issue the inmate a receipt for her or his confiscated items by completing the Inmate Impounded Personal Property List, Form DC6-220. Form DC6-220 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.201, F.A.C. Inmates in disciplinary confinement shall not possess any products that contain baby oil, mineral oil, cocoa butter, or alcohol.

(d) through (i) No change.

(j) Legal visits. Attorney-client visits shall be allowed as provided in Rule 33-601.711, F.A.C., ~~Legal Visitors~~, and shall not be restricted except on evidence that the visit would be a threat to security and order. The warden or his or her designee must approve all visits in advance.

(k) Legal Access.

1. No change.

2. Indigent inmates shall be provided paper, envelopes, and security pens in order to prepare legal papers or notify visitors of confinement status. An inmate with disabilities that hinder the preparation of legal correspondence will be allowed the use of auxiliary aids (writer/reader). An inmate who is provided an auxiliary aid shall also be allowed access to a certified law clerk for the purpose of preparing legal documents, legal mail, or filing a grievance.

(l) No change.

(m) Correspondence.

1. Inmates in disciplinary confinement shall be allowed routine correspondence privileges unless restricted as provided in Rule 33-601.308, F.A.C., ~~Disciplinary Action~~. Inmates shall be encouraged to write their families to advise them of their anticipated visiting status. Indigent inmates shall be provided paper and envelopes for this purpose.

2. Grievance forms, Form DC6-236, Inmate Request, and Form DC1-303, Request for Administrative Remedy, shall be made available to the inmate at any time, regardless of his or her confinement status, and shall be transmitted to the addressee without delay. Forms DC6-236 and DC1-303 are incorporated in Rule 33-103.011, F.A.C.

(n) No change.

(o) Reading Material. Scriptural and devotional reading materials that are in compliance with admissibility requirements in Rule 33-501.401, F.A.C., shall be permitted for those inmates in disciplinary confinement units unless there is an indication of a threat to the safety, security, or sanitation of the institution. If it is determined that there is a safety, security, or sanitation risk, the items will be removed. Such removal of reading materials shall be documented on Form DC6-229 in accordance with paragraph (9)(b) of this rule. An inmate who receives services from the Bureau of Braille and Talking Book Library shall be allowed to have his or her ~~their~~ tape players and devotional and scriptural materials that are in compliance with this rule.

(p) Exercise.

1. No change.

2. If the inmate requests a copy of the physical fitness program, the wellness specialist or confinement unit correctional officer shall provide the inmate with an in-cell exercise guide and document this action on ~~the~~ Form DC6-229; ~~Daily Record of Special Housing~~.

3. The ICT is authorized to restrict exercise for an individual inmate only when the inmate is found guilty of a major rule violation as defined in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C. Inmates shall be notified in writing of this decision and may appeal through the grievance procedure. The denial of exercise shall be no more than 15 days per incident and for no longer than 30 days cumulative length and shall be documented on Form DC6-229, ~~Daily Record of Segregation~~. Exceptions to this restriction may be made only when documented facts show that such exercise periods should not be granted. Restrictions may also be placed on the exercise periods by professional medical staff. A disabled inmate who is unable to participate in the normal exercise program will have an exercise program developed for him or her that will accomplish the need for exercise and take into account the particular inmate's limitations. The reasons for any exercise restrictions shall be documented on ~~the Daily Record of Segregation~~, Form DC6-229.

(q) Weighing. Inmates shall be weighed upon entering disciplinary confinement, at least once a week while in disciplinary confinement, and upon leaving disciplinary confinement. The weight of the inmate shall be documented on Form DC6-229, Daily Record of Special Housing Segregation.

(r) If items of clothing, bedding, or property are removed in order to prevent the inmate from inflicting injury to him or herself or others, to prevent destruction of property or equipment, or to prevent the inmate from impeding security staff from accomplishing functions essential to the unit and institutional security, staff shall re-assess the need for continued restriction every 72 hours thereafter. The warden, based on this assessment, will make the final determination on the continued denial or return of the items. The items will be returned to the inmate when no further behavior or threat of behavior of the type leading to the restriction has occurred.

(5) No change.

(6) Restraint and Escort Requirements.

(a) Prior to opening a cell door for any reason, including exercise, medical or disciplinary call-outs, telephone calls, recreation, and visits, all inmates in the cell shall be handcuffed behind their backs, unless documented medical conditions require that an inmate be handcuffed in front. In such cases, waist chains will be used in addition to the handcuffs, and the escort officers shall be particularly vigilant.

(b) through (e) No change.

(7) Visits to Disciplinary Confinement.

(a) The following staff members shall be required to officially inspect and tour the disciplinary confinement unit. All visits by staff, other than the 30 minute checks described in subparagraph 1. below, shall be documented on the Inspection of Special Housing Record, Form DC6-228. Form DC6-228 is incorporated in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. The staff member shall also document his or her visit on the Daily Record of Special Housing, Form DC6-229, if any discussion of

significance or action or behavior of the inmate, or any other important information is obtained which may have an influence or effect on the status of confinement. These visits shall be conducted a minimum of:

1. through 10. No change.

(b) Any inmate who has demonstrated behavior that is or could be harmful to him or herself shall be designated as a special risk inmate. If the inmate exhibits bizarre, mentally disordered, or self-destructive behavior, the medical department shall be immediately contacted by correctional staff to determine if special watch or suicide watch procedures should be initiated. Suicidal inmates shall be removed to a designated area where a correctional officer or medical staff can provide observation. Visual checks shall be made in accordance with medical protocols or the Inmate Suicide Precautions procedure at least every 30 minutes and shall be documented on Form DC4-650, Observation Checklist, until the inmate is no longer considered a special risk inmate. Form DC4-650 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.220, F.A.C. All actions taken by staff with regard to special risk inmates shall be documented on Form DC6-229 and followed with an Incident Report ~~incident report~~, Form DC6-210. ~~Form DC6-210 is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-602.210, F.A.C.~~

(8) Review and Release from Disciplinary Confinement.

(a) through (b) No change.

(b) Any inmate assigned to disciplinary confinement for more than 30 days shall be given a psychological screening assessment by a mental health professional to determine the inmate's mental condition. The assessment shall include a personal interview if deemed necessary by the mental health professional. The mental health clinician ~~psychologist~~ or mental health ~~psychological~~ specialist shall prepare a report to the ICT regarding the results of the assessment with recommendations. The ICT shall then make a decision regarding continuation of confinement. If the decision is to continue confinement, a psychological screening assessment shall be completed at least every 90-day period.

(c) No change.

(d) The SCO shall review the report prepared by the ICT and the mental health clinician ~~psychologist~~ or mental health ~~psychological~~ specialist concerning the inmate's disciplinary confinement at the next on-site visit; and shall interview the inmate before determining the final disposition of the inmate's disciplinary confinement.

(e) No change.

(9) Daily Record of Special Housing Segregation.

(a) Form DC6-229, A Daily Record of Special Housing, ~~Form DC6-229~~, shall be maintained for each inmate as long as the inmate is in disciplinary confinement.

(b) ~~The~~ Form DC6-229 shall be utilized to document any activity such as cell searches, items removed, showers, weighing of inmates, recreation, haircuts and shaves, and also

unusual occurrences such as refusal to come out of a cell or refusal to eat. If items that inmates in disciplinary confinement are not prohibited from possessing are denied or removed from the inmate, the shift supervisor or the confinement lieutenant must approve the action initially. The central office ADA coordinator shall be contacted within 24 hours if any item is removed that would be considered an auxiliary aid or device that ensures a disabled inmate an equal opportunity as a non-disabled inmate. The items denied or removed shall be documented on Form DC6-229, and the chief of security shall make the final decision in regard to the appropriateness of that action no later than the next working day following the action. The housing supervisor shall make a notation of any unusual occurrences or changes in the inmate's behavior and any action taken. Changes in housing location or any other special action shall also be noted. Form DC6-229 shall be maintained in the housing unit for 30 days. After each 30-day review by a member of the ICT, Form DC6-229 shall be forwarded to classification to be filed in the institutional inmate record.

(10) Form DC6-229B, ~~A Daily Record of Special Housing – Supplemental, Form DC6-229B~~, shall be completed and attached to the current ~~Daily Record of Special Housing~~, Form DC6-229, whenever additional written documentation is required concerning an event or incident related to the specific inmate. Form DC6-229B is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C.

(11) No change.

(12) Form DC6-209, ~~A Housing Unit Log, Form DC6-209~~, shall be maintained in each confinement unit. Officers shall record all daily unit activities on Form DC6-209, to include any special problems or discrepancies noted. The completed Form DC6-209 shall be forwarded daily to the chief of security for review.

(13) Staffing issues.

(a) Officers assigned to a disciplinary confinement unit shall be reviewed at least every 18 months. The shift supervisor or confinement lieutenant shall initiate the review by having the officer complete section I of the Special Housing Unit Rotation Review, Form DC6-295. Form DC6-295 is incorporated by reference in subsection (14) of this rule. The supervisor shall conduct an interview with the officer, ~~and~~ complete section II of Form DC6-295, and forward the form to the chief of security. The chief of security shall review personnel records, to include performance appraisals, incident reports, use of force reports, and any other documentation relevant to the officer's assignment and job performance; and shall interview the officer and the officer's supervisors for the period of review when necessary. The chief of security shall, upon completion of his or her review, complete section III of Form DC6-295 and forward the recommendation to the warden. The warden shall review the recommendation, request additional information if necessary, and make the final determination as to whether the officer continues in the current

assignment or is rotated to another assignment. The warden's decision shall be documented in section IV of Form DC6-295 and returned to the chief of security for action. The chief of security shall maintain the completed Form DC6-295. Any officer assigned to a confinement post shall be authorized a minimum period of five days annual leave or a five day assignment to a less stressful post every six months.

(b) The inspector general ~~Inspector General~~ shall notify the warden and regional director of institutions of any officer involved in eight or more use of force incidents in an 18-month period. The regional director of institutions shall review the circumstances for possible reassignment.

(14) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09 FS. History—New 3-12-84, Formerly 33-3.084, Amended 7-10-90, 4-28-96, 12-7-97, 3-23-99, Formerly 33-3.0084, Amended 2-12-01, 2-15-02, 4-1-04, 1-16-06, 10-31-06, 6-25-08, 6-8-09, 7-5-10, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Agency for Workforce Innovation

RULE NO.: 60BB-9.501
 RULE TITLE: Child Care Executive Partnership Program Funding

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule development is to implement the authority of the Agency for Workforce Innovation to adopt rules related to the establishment of the Child Care Executive Partnership (CCEP) Program.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The subject area to be addressed by the proposed rule is the process by which funding is distributed to early learning coalitions participating in the CCEP Program.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 411.0102 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 411.0102 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: Monday, September 20, 2010, 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. or until business is concluded

PLACE: The Caldwell Building, 107 East Madison Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4128 and via conference call at (888)808-6959, conference code 9213167

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Audrey Gaten at (850)245-7160. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Kristin

R. Harden, Agency for Workforce Innovation, Office of General Counsel, 107 East Madison Street, MSC #110, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4128, (850)245-7150
THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Available online at: XREFhttp://www.floridajobs.org/earlylearning/oel_state_fed.html#proposedrules

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes

RULE NO.: 61B-23.00215
RULE TITLE: Ombudsman; Election Monitoring; Monitor’s Role; Scope and Extent

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule amendment accomplishes the following purposes: clarifies that owners of multiple units must sign the petition for each unit; provides that the designated unit owner representative sign the petition; requires the association to provide a current list identifying the qualified voter for each condominium unit; requires the provision of a copy of the First Notice of Election; increases the petition filing time from 14 to 21 days in advance of an election; and requires associations to cooperate with the ombudsman and election monitor. The petition form is changed to correct mailing address and contact information; requires contact information for the property manager; requires petitioner to indicate whether the current list of qualified voters and First Notice of Election are attached to the petition; and deletes the option to provide a statement regarding the basis for the petition and other unnecessary information.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: This rule amendment addresses the procedures and form for requesting appointment of an election monitor.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 718.5012(10) FS.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 718.1255, 718.5012(10), 718.5014 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: September 17, 2010, 9:00 a.m.
PLACE: The Northwood Centre, Suite 16, Conference Room, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Sharon A. Malloy, Senior Management Analyst II, at (850)488-1631. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sharon A. Malloy, Senior Management Analyst II, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1030. The preliminary text of the proposed rule development is also available on line at http://www.myflorida.com/dbpr/lsc/LSCMHRulePromulgation.html

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes

RULE NO.: 61B-39.003
RULE TITLE: Filing of Single-Site Timeshare Plans

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Chapter 2010-134, Laws of Florida, requires lien disclosure information in all new timeshare public offering statements filed with the division which are not multisite timeshare plans. This rule amendment provides the location where the disclosure must appear in the public offering statement.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: This rule amendment addresses the filing of single-site timeshares plans with the division.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 721.07(5), 721.26(6) FS.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 721.05, 721.06(1), 721.07(5), (6), 721.52(4), (5) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: September 17, 2010, 2:00 p.m.
PLACE: The Northwood Centre, Suite 16, Conference Room, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Sharon A. Malloy, Senior Management Analyst II, at (850)488-1631. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sharon A. Malloy, Senior Management Analyst II, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1030. The

preliminary text of the proposed rule development is also available on line at <http://www.myflorida.com/dbpr/lsc/LSCMHRulePromulgation.html>

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notices for the Department of Environmental Protection between December 28, 2001 and June 30, 2006, go to <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Dentistry

RULE NO.: 64B5-13.005
RULE TITLE: Disciplinary Guidelines

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule development to modify the violations and penalties to the disciplinary guidelines.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Disciplinary guidelines.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.079(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.072(2), 456.079(1), 466.028 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Susan Foster, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Certified Master Social Workers

RULE NOS.: 64B25-28.001
RULE TITLES: Collection and Payment of Fees
64B25-28.002 Application Fee
64B25-28.003 Examination Fee
64B25-28.004 Endorsement Fee
64B25-28.005 Re-examination Fee
64B25-28.006 Initial Certification Fee
64B25-28.007 Biennial Certification Renewal Fee
64B25-28.008 Reactivation Fee

64B25-28.009 Biennial Inactive Status Renewal Fee
64B25-28.010 Application Fee for Inactive Status
64B25-28.011 Continuing Education Provider Application Fee
64B25-28.012 Application Forms and Requirements
64B25-28.013 Experience Required
64B25-28.014 Renewal of Active Certification
64B25-28.015 Examination for Certification

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The department determined that it is time to review and update the rules relating to certified master social workers.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Certified Master Social Workers.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.017, 491.007, 491.0085, 491.0145, 491.015 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.217, 456.017, 491.007, 491.008, 491.0085, 491.009, 491.0145 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Division of Medical Quality Assurance, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3250

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program

RULE NO.: 65A-1.712
RULE TITLE: SSI-Related Medicaid Resource Eligibility Criteria

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule provides language to the SSI-Related Medicaid Program resource eligibility criteria.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The language in the proposed rule addresses transfer to annuities, home equity, penalty period and compensation for property.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 409.919 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.902, 409.903, 409.904, 409.906, 409.919 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: September 29, 2010, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 455, Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Pat Whitford, Economic Self-Sufficiency Services, Telephone (850)410-3479

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

Section II Proposed Rules

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
14-1.020	General Purpose and Application
14-1.021	Final Orders

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Rule Chapter 14-1, F.A.C., is being amended to remove unnecessary language and repeal Rule 14-1.020, F.A.C.

SUMMARY: Rule Chapter 14-1, F.A.C., is being amended to update and reorganize the rules.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 344.044(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 120.53(1), (2) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Deanna R. Hurt, Assistant General Counsel and Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Florida Department of Transportation, Office of the General Counsel, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

14-1.020 General Purpose and Application.

~~Rulemaking Specific~~ Authority 334.044(2) FS. Law Implemented 120.53(1)(b),(c), 120.533(2)-(4), 120.57 FS. History—New 6-26-75, Amended 9-1-75, Formerly 14-6.01, Amended 8-1-90, 4-6-93, 1-17-99, Formerly 14-6.001, Repealed.

14-1.021 Final Orders.

(1) To ensure public access, ~~t~~The Department of Transportation (Department) will maintain a uniform index of final orders: ~~p~~Pursuant to Sections 120.53 and 120.533, F.S.

~~Florida Statutes, and Rule 1B-30.007, F.A.C. this rule chapter establishes the minimum requirements for indexing final orders as defined in Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes.~~

~~(2) Public Inspection and Duplication.~~

~~(a) The following shall be made available by the Department for public inspection and copying, at no more than cost:~~

~~1. All final orders.~~

~~2. A current subject matter index.~~

~~(b) The Clerk of Agency Proceedings assigned by the Department shall maintain and store such final orders and assist the public in obtaining copies of final orders and maintain a current subject matter index.~~

~~(c) The Department shall maintain and store such final orders. index with the Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Office of the General Counsel, 605 Suwannee Street, Room 550, Mail Station 58, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458. The office is open to the public between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., excluding holidays and weekends.~~

~~(2)(d) Final orders required to be indexed pursuant to under Section 120.53(1)(a)2.c., F.S. Florida Statutes, which are entered on or after July 1, 1998, will also be maintained, stored, and indexed on an electronic database Pursuant to Section 120.53(2)(a), F.S. Florida Statutes, the Department hereby designates the Municipal Code Corporation as the ~~its~~ official reporter for creating the electronic database and indexing and preserving final orders therein. ~~The electronic database will allow users to research and retrieve the full texts of agency final orders by using commonly used search terms and descriptive information about the orders, including major subject headings. The indexing system for the electronic database shall have fixed fields to ensure common usage of such terms by anyone who uses the system.~~ The Department will maintain the electronic database and make it available for public use. The following website is available to view Final Orders issued by the Department: <http://www.mccinnovations.com/weblink/Browse.aspx> <http://www.mccimaging.com>.~~

~~(3) Final Orders Required to be Indexed. The Department shall index all final orders.~~

~~(3)(4) Numbering of Final Orders.~~

~~(a) All final orders shall be sequentially numbered using a two-part number separated by a dash. The first part before the dash indicates the year and the second part indicates the numerical sequence of the order issued for that year, beginning with number “1” each new calendar year with zeros left of the case number for computer sorting purposes. For example, “00-001” is the first case for calendar year 2000. The assigned agency prefix, ~~which is~~ “FDOT,” shall precede the two-part number.~~

~~(4)(5) System for Indexing Final Orders.~~

~~(a) The Department shall maintain an alphabetical subject matter index for final orders. The subject matter index will go from general to specific. The initial headings shall be by~~